
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 
Page 1  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA 
THURSDAY, APRIL 25, 2024 – 5:00 P.M. 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2nd-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE 

Members of the public may participate remotely via zoom at the following link https://zoom.us/join with the 
following Webinar ID and Password: 

Meeting ID 921 8501 9918 

Security Passcode: 970928 

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, 
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the community. 
Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs with 
quality care in a safe and compassionate environment. 

AGENDA 
Presented By: 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call (Johnson) 

2. Board Announcements (Johnson) 

3. Public Comment (Johnson) 
This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief
statement, not to exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction
of this District Board, which are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda.
This is the appropriate place to comment on items on the Consent
Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take action on an item not on
the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should be provided
to the Board clerk for the official record. Whenever possible, written correspondence
should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting
to provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available.

4. Consent Agenda – General Business (Johnson) 
The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made
to adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

https://zoom.us/join


Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 
Page 2  

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
– March 21, 2024

B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
– March 25, 2024

C. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
– March 28, 2024

D. Consider and Approve Policies:
• Universal Bilirubin Screening for Newborns at 35 Weeks or More of Gestation
• Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and Domestic Violence
• Blanket-Solution Warmer

E. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.

• Provider Services & Clinic Operations
• Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)
• Laboratory and Radiology
• Foundation Report
• Facilities Report
• PMO Project Summary Report

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (E). 

► Report
► Board Questions
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

5. Medical Executive Committee (Dr. Bogey) 

A. Consider and Approve Medical Staff Credentials: March 20, 2024
Recommended Action: Approval of Credentials

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

B. Consider and Approve  Revised OPPE Policy
Recommended Action: Approval of Revised OPPE Policy

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

(Pages 1-2)

(Pages 3-4)

(Pages 5-19)

(Pages 20-30)

(Report Provided at Meeting)



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 
Page 3  

6. Receive Informational Reports

A. Board Education - Merger, Affiliation and Partnership; Risks and Benefits (Jeff Summer/Clare 
Kelley-Stroudwater 

► Public Comment Assoc.) 

B. Transaction Update (Peil/B.Riley) 

► Public Comment

C. Chief Executive Officer (Casillas) 

► Public Comment

D. Nurse Executive Consultant (Posey) 

► Public Comment

E. Finance Committee (Robinson) 

1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – April  18, 2024

2. Review Financial Updates
• Financial Statements – March  2024
• Finance Dashboard – March 2024
• Supplemental Payments

► Public Comment

7. Action Item

A. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Telemetry Services (Robinson) 
Agreement with Hicuity Health, Inc. for Three Years

Recommended Action: Approval of Telemetry Services Agreement

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

8. Public Comment
This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed  (Johnson) 
session topics, not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. Closed Session (Johnson) 
(See Attached Closed Session Sheet Information)

10. Reconvene Open Session / Closed Session Report (Johnson) 

(Pages 31-50)

(Pages 51-71)



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 
Page 4  

11. Adjournment (Johnson) 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday,
May 23, 2024 at 5:00 p.m., Great Room.

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is 
available at the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on 
the District’s website at https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. 
All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee 
recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any 
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed 
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the 
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public 
inspection following the meeting at the District office. 

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular 
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District 
to make reasonable accommodations. 

http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/


Page 1 of 2 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APRIL 25, 2024 

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda 
items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed 
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code. 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 

[  ] LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION 
(Government Code §54956.7) 

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants) 

[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code §54956.8) 

[X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 

Name of case: (Specify by reference to claimant's name, names of parties, case or claim numbers): 
San Benito Health Care District dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital, Case No. 23-50544 (United States 
Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division) 

Case name unspecified: (Specify whether disclosure would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement 
negotiations): 

[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
(Government Code §54956.9) 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) or (3) (Number of potential cases): 

Additional information required pursuant to Section 54956.9(e): 

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(4) (Number of potential cases): 

[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS 
(Government Code §54956.95) 

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961): 
Agency claimed against: (Specify name): . 

[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
(Government Code §54957) 

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer): 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
(Government Code §54957) 

Title:  



Page 2 of 2 
[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 

(Government Code §54957) 

Title: 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
(Government Code §54957) 

Title: (Specify position title of the employee being reviewed): 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
(Government Code §54957) 

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline, dismissal, or 
release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.) 

[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
(Government Code §54957.6) 

[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING 
(Government Code §54957.8) 

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.) 

[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET 
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106) 

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or facility): 

1. Trade Secrets, Strategic Planning, Proposed New Programs, and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year): 

[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS 
(Government Code §37624.3 & Health and Safety Code §§1461, 32155) 

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical audit 
committee, or report of quality assurance committee): 

[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED 

BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86) 

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.) 

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BLDG., 2ND FLOOR - GREAT ROOM 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2024 
2:00 PM 

MINUTES 
IN PERSON AND BY ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCE 

MINUTES 

Directors Present 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 

Bill Johnson, Board Member 
Devon Pack, Board Member 
Rick Shelton, Board Member 

Absent 
Josie Sanchez, Board Member 

Also Present   
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Amy Breen-Lema, VP Clinic, Ambulatory, & Phys. Services 
Andrea Posey, Interim Chief Nursing Officer 

Heidi Quinn, District Legal Counsel 
Chela Brewer, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order- Roll Call

Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, and Shelton were present; attendance was taken by
roll call.

Directors Josie Sanchez and Devon Pack were absent.

A quorum was present and the Special Meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by
Director Hernandez.

Director Pack arrived at 2:03 p.m.

2. Update on Portal Transaction Partners

The District’s consultant, Richard Peil of B.Riley provided an update to the Board.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three
minutes.

1



3. Action Item
A. Consider Temporary Advisory Committee’s Recommendations Regarding
County of San Benito’s Letter of Intent for a Proposed Business Transaction with the
District and Provide Authority to Negotiate

Ms. Mary Casillas, CEO,  introduced Cecilia Montalvo, San Benito County’s Consultant, 
and Supervisors Angela Curro, and Kollin Kosmicki with the San Benito County Board 
of Supervisors.   

A PowerPoint presentation was provided to the Board, and is available online.  

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three 
minutes. 

Motion:  By Director Hernandez to Approve the Letter of Intent for a proposed business 
transaction with the County of San Benito and provide authority to negotiate. 
Second by Director Johnson. 

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, 
Pack and Shelton.  Approved 4-0 by roll call, with Director Sanchez absent 

4. Adjournment:
There being no further business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 3:52 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors in scheduled for Thursday, March
28, 2024 at 5:00 p.m.

Audio of the Special Board Meeting may be found at the District’s website at Healthcare 
Services Hollister, CA | Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital. 

2

https://www.hazelhawkins.com/
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/


SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BLDG., 2ND FLOOR GREAT ROOM 

MONDAY, MARCH 25, 2024  
2:00 PM 

MINUTES 
IN PERSON AND BY ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCE 

MINUTES 

Directors Present 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 

Bill Johnson, Board Member 
Devon Pack, Board Member 
Rick Shelton, Board Member 

Absent 
Josie Sanchez, Board Member 

Also Present   
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Amy Breen-Lema, VP Clinic, Ambulatory, & Phys. Services 
Andrea Posey, Interim Chief Nursing Officer 

Heidi Quinn, District Legal Counsel 
Chela Brewer, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order- Roll Call

Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, and Shelton were present; attendance was taken by
roll call.

Director Josie Sanchez was absent.

A quorum was present and the Special Meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by
Director Hernandez.

2. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three
minutes.

3



3. Closed Session

President Hernandez announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on
the posted Agenda:
(1) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government Code
§54956.9(d)(1)
Name of case: San Benito Health Care District dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital,
Case No. 23-50544 (United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of
California, San Jose Division). Full details are noted in the Agenda.

The meeting was recessed into Closed Session at 2:05 p.m. 

The Board completed its business of the Closed Session at 4:00 p.m. 

4. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened into Open Session at 4:20 p.m. District Counsel
Quinn reported that in Closed Session the Board discussed: (1) Conference with Legal
Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(1).  An update was provided
to the Board but no reportable action was taken.

5. Adjournment

There being no further business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 4:00 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors in scheduled for Thursday, March 
28, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. 

Audio of the Special Board Meeting may be found at Healthcare Services Hollister, CA | 
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital 

4

https://www.hazelhawkins.com/
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/


Universal Bilirubin Screening for Newborns at 35 Weeks or More of Gestation

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/7/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12057
Revision Number: 0
Owner: Jacqueline Fernandez,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Replacing biliflash policy.

Page 1
5



DocID: 12057
Revision: 0
Status: In preparation
Department: Obstetrics
Manual(s):

Policy : Universal Bilirubin Screening for Newborns at 35 Weeks or More of
Gestation

PURPOSE

To outline the universal bilirubin screening program so that newborns at risk for severe hyperbilirubinemia are identified, evaluated and treated, when
necessary.

POLICY

All newborns 35 weeks gestational age or greater are screened for hyperbilirubinemia prior to discharge using a transcutaneous
bilirubinometer (TcB) or a total serum bilirubin (TSB). All bilirubin results will be interpreted based on the infant’s age in hours. Nurses may
obtain a bilirubin level using the TcB or draw blood for a total serum bilirubin without an order as warranted by the infant assessment.

PROCEDURE

A. Assess every infant for the presence of jaundice during each physical assessment.

B. Assess for hyperbilirubinemia risk factors. Risk factors Include:
Lower gestational age (i.e., risk increases with each additional week less than 40 weeks)

Jaundice in the first 24 hours after birth

Predischarge transcutaneous  bilirubin (TcB) or total serum bilirubin (TSB) concentration close to the phototherapy threshold

Hemolysis from any cause, if known or suspected based on a rapid rate of increase in the TSB or TcB of > 0.3 mg/dL per hour in the first 24
hours or > 0.2 mg/dL per hour thereafter

Phototherapy before discharge

Parent or sibling requiring phototherapy or exchange transfusion

Family history or genetic ancestry suggestive of inherited red blood cell disorders, including glucose-6-phosphate dehydrogenase (G6PD)
deficiency

Exclusive breastfeeding with suboptimal intake

Scalp hematoma or significant bruising

Down syndrome

Macrosomic infant of a diabetic mother

C. Obtain a bilirubin level using a TcB, or send a blood sample to the lab for total serum bilirubin (TSB) on all infants at 24 hours of life (and on any infant
appearing significantly jaundiced regardless of age) Obtain TCB every 24 hours of life or prior to discharge.

D. Use Bili tool to evaluate TCB/TSB. If TCB elevated, get TSB to confirm. Mark neurotoxicity risk factor in Bili tool if infant has the following risk factors:
Gestational age <38 weeks and this risk increases with the degree of prematurity

Albumin <3.0 g/dL

Isoimmune hemolytic disease (i.e., positive direct antiglobulin test), G6PD deficiency, or other hemolytic conditions

Sepsis

Significant clinical instability in the previous 24 hours.

E. Notify pediatrician of bilirubin results and assess need for phototherapy.

F. For babies undergoing phototherapy, TcB should not be used, please get TSB.

G. For infants with elevated bilirubin, give the infant’s parents or caregivers the infant’s last bilirubin level, weight, follow-up plan, physicians name and
phone number with other discharge instructions. Instruct parents to take this information to their first follow-up appointment scheduled in 48 to 72 hours.

H. Educate all parents about neonatal jaundice, and provide written education.

REFERENCES

1. American Academy of Pediatrics. (2022). Management of hyperbilirubinemia in the newborn infant 35 or weeks of gestation (Clinical
Practice Guideline). Pediatrics, 114, 297-316. Retrieved from: http://aappolicy.aappublications.org/cgi/content/full/pediatrics;114/1/297

2. Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses. (2010). Assessment and care of late preterm infant (Evidence-Based
Clinical Guideline. Washington, D.C.: Author.

3. Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses. (2009, Nov revised and reaffirmed). Universal screening for
hyperbilirubinemia (Position Statement). Retrieved from www.awhonn.org

Document ID 12057 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2
6

http://aappolicy.aappublications.org/cgi/content/full/pediatrics;114/1/297
http://www.awhonn.org


4. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (June, 2006). Jaundice alert: What every parent needs to know. Retrieved from
http://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/jaundice/documents/kernicterus_fs.pdf

5. Gennaro, S., Schwoebel, A., Hall, J.Y., & Bhutani, V.K. (2006). Hyperbilirubinemia: Identification and management in the healthy term and
near-term infant (Practice Monograph). Washington, D.C.: AWHONN.

6. The Joint Commission. (August 31, 2004). Revised guidance to help prevent kernicterus (Sentinel Event Alert, Issue 31). From
http://www.jointcommission.org/sentinel_event_alert_issue_31_revised_guidance_to_help_prevent_kernicterus/

Document ID 12057 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3
7

http://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/jaundice/documents/kernicterus_fs.pdf
http://www.jointcommission.org/sentinel_event_alert_issue_31_revised_guidance_to_help_prevent_kernicterus/


Document ID 12057 Document Status In preparation
Department Obstetrics Department Director Fernandez, Jacqueline

Document Owner Fernandez, Jacqueline Next Review Date
Keywords hyperbilirubinemia, tcb, tsb, infant, jaundice, phototherapy, pediatrician

Attachments: 
(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents: 
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12057$0.

Document ID 12057 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4
8

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12057$0


 

Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and Domestic Violence

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/7/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 10344
Revision Number: 1
Owner: Jacqueline Fernandez,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Converting from Word to HTML format. Updated title from "Abuse - Identification and Reporting of Suspected Abuse" to
"Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and Domestic Violence"

Page 1
9



DocID: 10344
Revision: 1
Status: In preparation
Department: Nursing Administration
Manual(s):

Policy : Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and
Domestic Violence

PURPOSE

All Health care workers are mandated to identify, assess, evaluate, intervene, and report suspected victims of abuse to the appropriate authorities.

All patients over the age of fourteen (14) are to be screened for abuse at areas of entry to the facility.

POLICY

It is Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital's policy to screen all patients upon entry to the facility for signs of abuse. All suspected and confirmed cases will be
reported.

A. Early recognition and routine screening can significantly reduce the morbidity and mortality that results from violence.  Routine screening is an effective
way to identify patients who are being abused.

B. The following are the types of abuse that may be inflicted upon another individual and are reportable by law.
1. Emotional Abuse

a. Mental or emotional injury to the person that results in an observable and material impairment in growth, development or psychological
functioning.

b. Causing or permitting the person to be in a situation in which the person sustains a mental or emotional injury that results in an
observable and material impairment in growth, development, or psychological functions.

2. Physical Abuse
a. Physical injury that results in substantial harm to the person or the genuine threat of substantial harm from physical injury to the person,

including an injury that is at variance with the medical history or explanation given. This excludes an accident or reasonable discipline by
a parent, guardian, or managing or possessory conservator that does not expose the person to a substantial risk of harm.

b. Failure to make a reasonable effort to prevent an action by another person that results in physical injury that results in substantial harm
to the person.

3. Sexual Abuse
a. Sexual contact, sexual intercourse, sexual conduct, sexual penetration with a foreign object, incest, sexual assault or sodomy inflicted

upon, shown to or intentionally practiced in the presence of a child or dependent adult, if the child or dependent adult is present only to
arouse or gratify desires of any person.

b. Failure to make a reasonable effort to prevent sexual contact, sexual intercourse, sexual conduct, sexual assault, or sodomy inflicted on,
shown to or intentionally practiced in the presence of a child or dependent adult, if the child or dependent adult is present only to arouse
or gratify desires of any person.

c. Compelling or encouraging the person to engage in sexual conduct.

d. Causing, permitting, encouraging or allowing the photographing, filming or depicting of the person if the person knew or should have
known that the resulting photograph, film or depiction is obscene or pornographic.

4. Domestic Violence

Characterized as a pattern of coercive behaviors that may include repeated battery and injury, psychological abuse, sexual assault, progressive
social isolation, deprivation and intimidation.

a. All patients will be screened upon entry to the facility. This could be from the Emergency Department, Surgery Department, Direct
Admission, the Clinic, or Skilled Nursing Facilities.

b. All patients admitted for nursing services will be screened with the following question:

“Are you being hurt/frightened/threatened by anyone?”

This should be done:
1. In a safe environment.  No friends or relatives of the patients should be present during the screening and preferably no children

over the age of two (2).

2. Face to face, with assurance to the patient that the screening will be confidential.  Use a non-threatening, non-judgmental
manner.

3. Using questions that are direct, specific and easy to understand in the patient’s primary language.  Interpreters should be
another healthcare provider.  Do not use the patient’s family, friend, or children when asking questions about domestic violence.

c. Document in the patient’s chart that domestic violence is or has been present, has not occurred, or is suspected even if the patient
denies it. Complete Abuse/Domestic Violence Screening/Documentation Form

Document ID 10344 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2
10



5. Financial Abuse

Financial or material abuse is the misuse or stealing of money, assets, or belongings of another person for personal gain, sometimes by
coercion, threats, or deception. Financial abuse may be experienced by a partner, child, and or caregiver who does the following: controls your
money, steals from you and or refuses to contribute to the household expenses.

6. Digital Abuse

Someone who engages in digital abuse exerts control using social media, texting, and other forms of technology. Digital abuse is most common
in dating relationships and especially affects teenagers. Digital abuse may involve: Cyberbullying, demanding to know passwords, sexting
(nonconsensual) and controlling social media use.

7. Abandonment

The leaving of the person in a situation where they would be exposed to a substantial risk or harm without arranging for necessary care, and a
demonstration of an intent not to return by a parent, guardian or managing possessory conservator.

8. Medical Neglect

The failure to seek, obtain or follow through with medical care for a person, with the failure resulting in presenting a substantial risk of death,
disfigurement or bodily injury, or with the failure resulting in an observable and material impairment to the growth, development and/or
functioning of a person.

9. Physical Neglect

The failure to provide the person with food, clothing, or shelter necessary to sustain life or health of the person, excluding failure caused primarily
by financial inability unless relief services had been offered and refused.

C. The identification process is multidimensional and often complicated.  The following criteria may be used to assist in identification of abuse.
1. Physical Abuse

a. Scratches, cuts, bruises, burns.

b. Welts, scalp injury, gag marks.

c. Sprains, punctures, broken bones, bedsores.

d. Confinement.

e. Injuries inconsistent with explanation of occurrence.

2. Rape/Other Forms of Sexual Abuse
a. Trauma to penis, vulva and/or anal region

b. Sexual manipulation of penis, vulva and/or anal region with a foreign object

c. Diagnosis of sexually transmitted disease in children and non-sexually-active adolescents

3. Neglect

The failure to provide for one’s self, the goods, or services, which are necessary to avoid physical harm, mental anguish, or mental illness, or the
failure of a caretaker to provide such goods or services.

a. Malnourishment, dehydration.

b. Over/under medication.

c. Lack of heat and or running water.

d. Lack of medical care.

e. Lack of personal hygiene and/or clothes.

4. Exploitation

The illegal or improper act or process of using the resources of a child or an elderly or disabled person for monetary or personal benefit.
a. Taking social security/SSI checks.

b. Abusing joint checking account privileges.

c. Taking property and/or other resources

5. Verbal and psychological abuse

6. In children under three (3)years of age
a. The caregiver of an injured child reports a change in the child (such as decreased mobility) instead of reporting an accident.

b. The extent of the injury is more severe that the reported cause would indicate.

c. A child under one (1) year old suffers a fracture of the radius, ulna tibia/fibula, or femur.

7. In persons 65 years of age or older or in disabled persons:
a. Contusions or lacerations are inconsistent with patients or caregiver’s explanation of injury.

b. Contusions or lacerations are found where people are not usually injured, such as inner thighs.

c. Injuries from different causes which occurred at the same time: for example, stab wound and contusions.

d. Symmetrical wounds or fractures are present.

e. The patient has suffered a spiral long-bone fracture from a “direct blow”.

f. Multiple bruises appear to be in the same evolutionary state.

g. The patient is wearing bloodstained undergarments.

Document ID 10344 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3
11



h. The caregiver has provided improper levels of prescription medication.

i. The patient is dehydrated or malnourished.

j. Wounds or lesions are not properly attended.

The rights and responsibilities of the individual

The hospital will protect the patient from neglect, exploitation, and abuse while patient is receiving care, treatment and services at Hazel Hawkins
Memorial Hospital.

D. Reporting

All suspected and confirmed cases of victim abuse will be reported to the appropriate follow-up and/or law enforcement agency.  The shift coordinator
and/or social services will be notified in the case of inpatients.  Northside SNF, and Mabie SNF will follow their specific policy reporting guidelines.

1. Child Abuse/Neglect – Child Protective Services and Law Enforcement Agency 

See attached Appendix C.  Follow instructions on form for completion and distribution.  Yellow copy = chart copy.

2. Elder/Dependent Abuse/Neglect (age 65 years or older or 18-64 whose physical/mental limitations restrict their ability to care for themselves).

Adult Protective Services and Law Enforcement agency (see attached Appendix A)

3. Domestic Violence – Law Enforcement agency
a. The local law enforcement agency will be contacted where the incident of violence occurred, if known.

b. A telephone report shall be made immediately.  In all cases, a written report must be made within two (2) working days.  Failure to report
where required is a misdemeanor, punishable by fine of $1,000 and/or a jail term or six months (P.C. Sect 11162)

E. Documentation
1. Patient record

2. Appropriate reporting form

F. Patient Teaching

Hand out “Domestic Violence” (in English and Spanish) located in public and patient areas, including public restrooms.

DESIGNEE

MD/DO

All SBHCD Healthcare Workers

REFERENCES

California Penal Code:  Sections 11160, 11161, 11166

California Welfare and Institutions Code:  Section 15630

California Board of Registered Nursing:  Nursing Practice Act

APM Policy

Child Sexual Assault Reporting Requirements (Appendix A)

Mandated Reporting Simplified (Appendix B)

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A – Child Sexual Assault Reporting Requirements (See below)

Appendix B - A Quick Reference Guide to Assault and Abuse Reporting Requirements (California Hospital Association - 03/15)

Document ID 10344 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4
12

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10356


 

 

 

Document ID 10344 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 5
13



Document ID 10344 Document Status In preparation
Department Nursing Administration Department Director Fernandez, Jacqueline

Document Owner Fernandez, Jacqueline Next Review Date
Original Effective Date 02/01/2010

Revised [05/01/2007], [09/01/2012], [04/20/2021 Rev. 0]
Reviewed [02/01/2010], [12/01/2012], [03/01/2015], [06/01/2016], [01/01/2019]
Keywords emotional, mental, injury, sexual, physical, threats, neglect, abandonment

Attachments: 
(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT) A Quick Reference Guide to Assault and Abuse Reporting Requirements 

Other Documents: 
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT) Assault and Abuse Reporting Policy/Guidelines 

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10344$1.

Document ID 10344 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 6
14

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10356
https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:11465
https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10344$1


1215 K Street, Suite 800 • Sacramento, CA 95814 • (916) 443-7401 • www.calhospital.org 03/15

Child Abuse and Neglect Elder/Dependent Adult Abuse
Injury by Firearm or Assaultive/ 

Abusive Conduct

Reporting 
Trigger

Mandated reporter has observed or has knowledge of a 
child whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has 
been the victim of child abuse or neglect. May also report 
serious emotional damage or risk thereof (not required)

Includes: non-accidental physical injury that was not 
self-inflicted; sexual abuse; neglect; willful harm, injury 
or endangerment; unlawful corporal punishment or injury; 
abuse or neglect in out-of-home care

Applies to: minors under age 18

Note: reporting of a minor’s sexual activity varies with age 
and circumstances

Mandated reporter has observed or has knowledge of 
(including being told by the elder/dependant adult) an incident 
that reasonably appears to be abuse

Includes: physical abuse, neglect, financial abuse, 
abandonment, isolation, abduction or other treatment with 
resulting physical harm or pain or mental suffering, or the 
deprivation by a care custodian of goods or services that are 
necessary to avoid physical harm or mental suffering

Applies to: elder persons age 65 or older; dependent adults 
ages 18 to 64 with physical or mental limitations; adult 
inpatients (age 18 to 64)  in an acute care hospital or other 
24-hour health facility

Health practitioner and physician providing medical 
services to a patient whom they reasonably suspect has a 
physical condition resulting from:
1. A wound or injury by a firearm (self-inflicted or by 

another person) or
2. A wound or injury resulting from assaultive or abusive 

conduct (as defined by Penal Code 11160(d))

Includes: murder, mayhem, assault, rape, battery, abuse of 
spouse or cohabitant and additional offenses as defined by 
Penal Code 11160(d)

Duty to report applies even if treating a condition not 
related to the assault, abuse or firearm injury

To Whom  
to Report

Local law enforcement, designated county probation 
department or county welfare department

Varies depending on where the suspected/alleged abuse 
occurred:
1. Long-term care facility, physical abuse: report to local 

ombudsman, local law enforcement, and corresponding 
licensing agency (CDPH or DSS)

2. Long-term care facility, abuse other than physical: report 
to local ombudsman or local law enforcement 

3. State mental health hospital or state development center: 
report to designated investigators at California Department 
of State Hospitals, California Department of Developmental 
Services, and local law enforcement

4. Anywhere other than the above: report to adult protective 
services agency or local law enforcement

Local law enforcement

Time 
Frame

1. Immediate telephone report
2. Follow up with written report by mail, fax or email 

within 36 hours

1. Immediate report by telephone or confidential Internet 
reporting tool (if available)

2. If initially reported by phone, follow up with written report 
or Internet report within two working days

NOTE: If the abuse occurred in a long-term care facility, 
quicker reporting is required (sometimes within 2 hours of 
learning of the incident).  See Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 15630(b).

1. Immediate telephone report
2. Follow up with written report within two working days

Required 
Form

“Suspected Child Abuse Report,” Department of Justice, 
Form SS 8572. Obtain from local social services or child 
protective services agency or download at www.ccfmtc.org

“Report of Suspected Dependent Adult/Elder Abuse,” 
California Department of Social Services, Form SOC 341, 
download at www.ccfmtc.org

“Suspicious Injury Report,” Office of Emergency Services 
(OES), Form CalOES 2-920, download at www.ccfmtc.org

A Quick Reference Guide to

AssAult And Abuse RepoRting RequiRements

See chapter 19, “Assault and Abuse Reporting Requirements,” of CHA’s Consent Manual for additional information.

Sexual Assault/Rape In addition to the above reporting requirements, each county must designate at least one general acute care hospital to perform forensic 
examinations on victims of sexual assault, including child molestation. Examination requires the consent of the patient. Local law enforcement must be notified 
by telephone prior to beginning the forensic examination. Forensic report forms may be downloaded at www.ccfmtc.org.

Document ID 10356 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 7
15



 

Blanket-Solution Warmer

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/7/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12078
Revision Number: 0
Owner: Jacqueline Fernandez,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
No revision note

Page 1
16



DocID: 12078
Revision: 0
Status: In preparation
Department: Administration - Multidisciplinary
Manual(s):

Policy : Blanket-Solution Warmer

PURPOSE

To maintain warm solutions/blankets for patient comfort in patient care areas.

POLICY

A warming cabinet will be used to raise the temperature of Intravenous (IV) and irrigation solutions and/or blankets to an acceptable level for patient
application.

DESIGNEE

Patient Care Team

Sterile Processing Technicians

Transporter/Unit Clerk/Techs

Surgical Technician

Nurses/Licensed Vocational Nurses

Nursing Assistants

EQUIPMENT

Warmer

Blanket-Solution Warmer Temperature Log

PROCEDURE

1. The control dial for the blanket warmer chambers will be set at 125° Fahrenheit (F) for not to exceed 130°F.  For solutions the chamber can be set for
101°F and not to exceed 104°F. Warming solution range can be from 86°F-104°F.

2. The temperature of the chambers will be verified and documented daily Monday – Friday and on weekends when staff is present. A Blanket-Solution
Warmer Temperature Log will be used to capture temperature, if a temperature is out of range a work order will be placed for the Engineering
department to follow up. In the instance where a temperature is found to be out of acceptable range, a member of the Engineering team will acknowledge
and adjust accordingly. Close loop communication will be done with department lead or designee.

3. Temperature of solutions will be checked prior to use for safe patient use; pouring a sample or feeling the outside of an IV bag is an acceptable indicator.
In the event temperature is found to be out of range, the following process will be implemented:

Create a Work Order (WO) via the Hazel Hawkins Intranet, select Eng Request tab, fill out all required fields and Submit.
The system will generate a WO ticket number.  Record that number on the Blanket-Solution Warmer Temperature Log.
If the solution warmer’s temperature is above acceptable range, please contact pharmacy.

4. Shelving provided by the manufacturer will be used to support effective warming.

5. Solutions will be loaded in the unit to support a first in last out rotation; load from front left, front to back. Pull from right front. They will be dated as soon
as stocked in the warmer, after 4 weeks, if unused, they will be discarded.

6. Blankets will be loaded in the unit to support patient care needs.

7. To reach desired temperature:

Solutions in bags-10-12 hours

Solutions in bottles-5-6 hours

Blankets –4 hours

DOCUMENTATION

Blanket-Solution Warmer Temperature Log

Document ID 12078 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2
17



REFERENCES

AORN GUIDELINES

https://www.aorn.org/article/2021-12-03-Environment-of-Care

U.S. Pharmacopeia: Microsoft Word - m2773_c659.docx (uspnf.com) USP659

https://www.ecri.org/search-results/member-preview/hrc/pages/surgan23

Document ID 12078 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3
18

https://www.uspnf.com/sites/default/files/usp_pdf/EN/notices/2018/c659-proposed.pdf
https://www.ecri.org/search-results/member-preview/hrc/pages/surgan23


Document ID 12078 Document Status In preparation
Department Administration - Multidisciplinary Department Director Fernandez, Jacqueline

Document Owner Fernandez, Jacqueline Next Review Date
Attachments: 

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)
Other Documents: 

(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12078$0.

Document ID 12078 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4
19

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12078$0


 
 
To:  San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From:  Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services 

Date:  April 16, 2024 

Re:  All Clinics – March 2024 

 
 

Rural Health and Specialty Clinics’ visit volumes 

 

This month as part of National Doctors’ Day, we honor our physicians for their unwavering dedication 
and invaluable contributions to patient care at all our health clinics. 
 
• Zarin Amin DO, OB/Gyn 
• Ralph Armstrong DO, OB/Gyn 
• Aslam Barra MD, OB/GYN 
• Leticia Bradford MD, Orthopedic Surgery 
• Benedict Carota MD, Family Medicine 
• Raymond Carrillo MD, Nephrology 
• Dina Casparro DPM, Podiatry 
• Prathibha Chandrasekaran MD, Gastroenterology 
• Margaret Cooper Vaughn MD, OB/GYN 
• Russell Dedini MD, Orthopedic Surgery 
• Piyush Dhanuka MD, Gastroenterology 
• Joseph Fabry, DO, General Surgery 
• Taynet Febles MD, Infectious Disease 
• Nick Gabriel DO, General Surgery 
• Jerry Ginsburg MD, Cardiology 
• Michael Grecula, MD, Orthopedic Surgery 
• Vivek Jain MD, Neurology 

 

•      Joseph Jiang MD, Cardiology 
• Joseph Klapper MD, Cardiology 
• Stefan Klein MD, Orthopedic Hand Surgery 
• Michael Koteles MD, Endocrinology    
• Zainab Malik, MD, Psychiatry 
• Carol Mei MD, Hematology/Oncology 
• Nicholas Namihas MD, Gastroenterology 
• Hue Nguyen DO, Pediatrics 
• Jullian Nguyen MD, Family Medicine 
• Dennis Phan MD, Nephrology 
• Barbara Rever MD, Nephrology 
• Jiwu Sun MD, Internal Medicine 
• Arminda Tolentino MD, Family Medicine 
• Anita Tolentino-Macaraeg MD, Pediatrics 
• Christopher Verioti DO, Orthopedic Surgery

 

Clinic Location Total visits 
current month

Orthopedic Specialty 285
Multi-Specialty 669

Sunset 910
Surgery & Primary Care 143

San Juan Bautista 206
1st Street 815
4th Street 1,211
Barragan  638

Total 4,877

20



 
Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility 

Board Report – APRIL 2024 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Dee Cross, RN, MLS, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility 
 
 
1. Census Statistics: March 2024 

Southside 2024 Northside 2024 
Total Number of Admissions 7 Total Number of Admissions 1 
Number of Transfers from HHH 7 Number of Transfers from HHH 0 
Number of Transfers to HHH 6 Number of Transfers to HHH 1 
Number of Deaths 0 Number of Deaths 0 
Number of Discharges 12 Number of Discharges 5 
Total Discharges 12 Total Discharges 5 
Total Census Days 1305 Total Census Days 1,312 
Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total 
census excludes bed hold days. 
 
2. Total Admissions: March 2024 

Southside From Payor Northside From Payor 
4 HHMH Medicare 0 HHH Medicare 
3 HHMH/Re-Admit Medicare 0 HHH/Re-Admit CCA 
   1 Salinas Valley INS (Hospice) 
      
      
      
      

Total:    7   Total:    3   
 
3. Total Discharges by Payor: March 2024 

Southside 2024 Northside 2024 
Medicare 8 Medicare 2 
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0 
CCA 4 CCA 2 
Medical 0 Medical 1 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 0 Hospice 0 
Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self ay) 0 
Insurance 0 Insurance 0 
Total:  12 Total: 5 
 

21



4. Total Patient Days by Payor: March 2024 
Southside 2024 Northside 2024 

Medicare 239 Medicare 3 
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0 
CCA 973 CCA 1127 
Medical 62 Medical 127 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 0 Hospice 23 
Private (self-pay) 31 Private (self-pay) 31 
Insurance 0 Insurance 0 
Bed Hold / LOA 19 Bed Hold / LOA 1 
Total: 1324 Total: 1,312 
Average Daily Census 42.71 Average Daily Census 42.32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



 
 
 
 
 
To:   San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
From:  Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services 
Date:  April 2024 
Re:  Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging 
 
 
Updates: 
Laboratory 

1. Service/Outreach  
- Providing specimen collection and labeling in-service to Provider offices. 

 
2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities 

- Currently working with Nursing departments on a process improvement for blood transfusion 
documentation. 
 

3. Laboratory Statistics 

 March 2024 YTD 

Total  Outpatient Volume 4122 12086 
 Main Laboratory 1176 3553 
 HHH Employee Covid Testing 1 23 
 Mc Cray Lab 1348 3319 
 Sunnyslope Lab 391 1144 
 SJB and 4th Street 25 144 
 ER and ASC 1181 3903 
Total Inpatient Volume 183 604 

 
 
Diagnostic Imaging 

1. Service/Outreach 
- Made modifications on scheduling radiology outpatient procedures to improve patient experience. 

 
2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities 

- TJC inspection preparation activities with staff 
 
 
 
 

23



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics 

 March 2024 YTD 

Radiology  1863 5257 
Mammography 709 2155 
CT 927 2650 
MRI 158 449 
Echocardiography 108 215 
Ultrasound 796 2252 

 

24



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DISTRICT FACILITIES & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, April 18, 2024 
4:00 P.M. – Great Room 

 
MINUTES 

  
                                               

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL: 
The meeting of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee was called to order by Jeri Hernandez at 
4:00p.m.  
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
 Jeri Hernandez, Board President      In Attendance 

Bill Johnson, Board Vice President     In Attendance 
Mary Casillas, VP, Chief Executive Officer     
Mark Robinson, VP, Chief Finance Officer    In Attendance 
Amy Breen-Lema, VP, Clinics, Ambulatory & Physicians Services  In Attendance 
Andrea Posey, Consultant      In Attendance 
Doug Mays, Senior Director, Support Services     
William Pollard, Plant Operations Manager    In Attendance 
Tina Pulido, Plant Operations\Construction Coordinator   In Attendance 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The minutes of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee of March 21, 2024 were approved with a 
motion by Bill J. and second by Jeri H. 

 
 
III. UPDATE ON CURRENT PROJECTS:  

• HHH Autoclave Replacement (Will P.) 
Will P. reported that HCAI has reviewed the project and we received a few comments back on 4/12. The 
comments will be resolved this week and resubmitted next week. 
 

• HHH Boiler Replacement (Will P.) 
Will P. reported that we have received the stamped approved drawings from HCAI. 

 
• HHH Respiratory Therapy TJC POC Case Work (Will P.) 

Will P. reported that installation is currently scheduled for April 25th.  
 
IV. UPDATE ON PENDING PROJECTS: 

 
• HHH Med Surg Double Door Replacement (Will P.) 

Will P. reported that we will replace the mag sensor and broken door mechanism instead of replacing the doors 
which should correct the issue with the door not closing completely when the fire alarm is activated.  
 

V. UPDATE ON MASTER PLAN: 
• SPC-4d (Will P.) 

Will P. reported that we are currently working on the following: 
 
1) Small and Rural Hospital Relief Program Application (PIN 71) 

Will P. reported that our plan has been accepted by HCAI and we are currently awaiting 
notification of grant approval. 
 

25



2) AB 1882/OSHPD PIN 75 Signage Requirements 
Will P. reported that we should have a response from the AOR by the beginning of next week if 
HCAI has approved the verbiage needed to go on the signs.  

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT:   

There was no public comment. 
 

VII. OTHER BUSINESS:  
There was no other business. 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:10 PM. The next Facilities Committee 
meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2024. 

  

26



 
 
 
 
 
 

TO:      San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
FROM:    Liz Sparling, Foundation Director 
DATE:    April 2024 
RE:    Foundation Report 
 

The Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation Board of Trustees met on April 11 at Noon the in 
the Horizon Room.  Our guest presenter was Kyle Sharp from Edward Jones Investments 
who gave a presentation on our Foundation accounts.   

Financial Report         March    

1. Income      $   8,624.49 
2. Expenses    $   7,988.41 
3. New Donors              1     
4. Total Donations                       165         

 

Allocations 
1. The Board allocated reserved funds from designated Edward Jones 

accounts to be placed into a CD. 

Directors Report 

 Our All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign started on April 1st.  We have 

sent letters to all employees to participate.  This year we have over 

$44,000 pledged!  Thank you to all the employees that have 

participated!  The campaign runs through April 30. 

 I am currently on a Committee that is reorganizing a Leadership 

Program back into San Benito County.  We are currently operating 

under the Community Foundation as the San Benito County 

Leadership Institute.  The application for the fall class is now 

available.  If you know anyone who would be interested, please let me 

know and I can get them more information.  

 We continue to fundraise and meet with donors to inform them on 

what the latest news is at the Hospital. 

Dinner Dance Report: 

 The Committee met and had lunch at the Paicines Ranch on March 

28th.  We toured the venue and are excited about our in person 

Dinner Dance this year on November 2nd.  Please mark your 

calendars! 
 

Scholarship Committee: 
 The Foundation is awarding Scholarships for students perusing their 

career in the medical field and the deadline to apply was April 1st.  The 

Committee is currently reviewing all applications. 

27



PMO Project Summary Report 

Date: 4.18.24 

Summary of current and completed projects managed by the Project Management Office (PMO). 
This is a high-level overview of the PMO's activity, highlighting key initiatives and their outcomes. 

Current Projects 

Project Name Project 
Description Start Date Target Completion 

Date Current Status Key Deliverables 

Access 
eForms/Passport 

Access Passport is a 
web-based forms 
solution that 
provides access to 
the functional 
elements you need 
to 
remove all paper 
from your forms 
processes—making 
them completely 
electronic from start 
to finish. 

4/29/24 11/30/24 Waiting for 
servers 

New registration 
forms and new 
hardware install 

BD Anti Diversion 
& Pyxis Install 

Install larger Pyxis 
in ICU. Current 
one will go to OB 
Surg. Install new in 
PACU and outside 
OR. Returning 
Anesthesia units. 
Implement 
pharmacy 
diversion software 
across all. 

2/9/24 TBD Waiting on 
vendor 

• Install add’l 
units and 
move units  

• Install 
diversion 
software 
on units 

• Install data 
drops and 
electrical 

EHR Project Identify and demo 
EHR systems 2/14/24 TBD 

Waiting on 
direction of 
other EHR’s to 
include (if any) 

Schedule and 
coordinate 
demos 

Insight Due 
Diligence 

Coordinate 
gathering of data 
and put in data 
room 

3/19/24 5/31/24 

Waiting on new 
data room and 
all of data to be 
sent 

Set up data room 
and collate data 

28



MD Staff 

MD-Staff is a 
feature rich 
enterprise level 
credentialing 
system that is 
powerful, user 
friendly, and 
intuitive. 

3/18/24 20-30 Weeks 
Waiting on 
current vendor 
for data export 

• Provide 
Source 
Data to 
vendor 

• Provide 
Merge 
Documents 
and priv 
forms 

• Training 
• Add users 

MM Charge 
master 

Ensure charge 
codes for RAD are 
entered and 
general cleanup 
of MM charge 
master 

4/5/24 TBD 
Waiting on 
additional 
instructions 

Data validation 

Promoting 
Interoperability 

Meet and 
successfully attest 
to CMS 
regulations 

1/5/24 
Q4 – calendar 
year (Oct-Nov-
Dec) 

In process 

Attest and report 
out successful 
completion of 
identified 
measures 

Completed Projects 

Project Name Project Description Start Date Completion 
Date 

Key 
Achievements Lessons Learned 

Insight 
Health Visit 

Coordinate 
Insight 
community visit 

2/22/24 3/14/24 

Introductions, 
data sharing, 
community 
involvement 

Over-
communicate 

Midas Risk 
Pharmacy 

Edit worklists to 
change 
direction of 
med errors to 
go to Pharm 
first to ensure 
MERP 

4/1/24 4/4/24 Regulatory 
compliance 

Tiffany is 
awesome! (I kind 
of already knew 
this.) She learned 
a process from a 
10 min training 
session 

29



regulatory 
information is 
entered  

Statit 

Schedule, 
coordinate 
and attend 
STATIT training 
for new Med 
staff director 

2/26/24 2/28/24 

Med staff 
department 
trained on 
software for 
OPPE 

 

Telephone 
Answering 
Service 

Research and 
provide 
options to 
Mishel of other 
answering 
services 

3/27/24 4/8/24 

Options 
provided to 
management 
that afforded 
them 
information to 
make an 
informed 
decision 

 

TMS 

Add district 
assets to the 
Eng WO system 
to allow 
coordinating 
and Prev Maint 
scheduling 

12/1/23 3/4/24 

Entering of 
this data 
increases 
reporting 
capabilities 
and tracking 
of assets 

 

 

 

Metrics and Reporting 

Surveys are being sent out to the project owners upon close of their project.  We will utilize this 
feedback to improve our project management processes. 

30



 
 

 

 

 
CEO Report 
April 2024 

Financial Emergency Update 
• Met with representative from the County and their consultants to review their financial model.  

 
CEO Activities 

• Continue to participate in strategy for AB1423 with CHA. Financial analysis was performed through 
CHA and HHH appears to benefit from this proposed change.  

• Testified at the State Senate Health Committee in Sacramento in favor of AB1423 on April 24, 2024.  
• Met with Monterey section CEO’s through the Hospital Council. Topics discussed included; Seismic 

legislation, Office of Healthcare Affordability, Insurer accountability, and workforce pipeline, retention 
and work place violence.  

HR 
• The overall turnover rate for the hospital has been consistent and is currently slightly over 4% for the 

year.  
 
PMO 

• The PMO completed a 3-day demo of Meditech Expanse, an upgrade to our current EMR. Staff, 
administration and Physicians attended the demos. All sessions were recorded to have those that could 
not attend see the demonstrations and give feedback.  The PMO is currently collecting feedback from 
those who attended the demos and planning next steps.  

 
Physician Services 

• Dr. Klein and Dr. Dedini have started seeing patients in the orthopedic clinic.  Dr. Kebelo will be 
starting in May. With the addition of these physicians, our orthopedic service line is more robust and 
diversified than has been in recent years. 

• The team has interviewed and conducted site visits for Psychiatry providers.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

31



DEPARTMENTAL  METRICS January February March Q124

# Employees 667 676 679 674

#  New Hires 15 17 10 42

# Terminations 7 11 10 28

Overall Turnover 1.0% 1.6% 1.5% 4.2%

Nursing Turnover 0.78% 1.53% 2.3% 4.6%

Terms By Union January February March Q124
The California Nurses Association (CNA)

1 2 3 6
National Union of Healthcare Workers (NUHW)

4 8 7 19
California License Vocational Nurses (CLVN)

0 0 0 0
Non-Union

2 1 0 3

Terms By Reason (V=Voluntary & IV= Involuntary) January February March Q124

Personal (V) 2 4 2 8

Retirement (V) 4 2 1 7

Schedule (V) 1 0 1 2

Job Abandonment (V) 0 2 0 2

No Reason Given (V) 0 2 2 4

Relocating (V) 0 0 1 1

Performance (IV) 1 1 3 5

HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD 2024

32



 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Contact: 
Jan Emerson-Shea 
(916) 804-0663 
jemerson-shea@calhospital.org  
@jemersonshea – Twitter 
 

Legislators to Consider Bill to Preserve Rural Health 
Care Services   

SACRAMENTO (April 18, 2024) — Nearly 2 million people live in California’s 
rural communities, while many millions more visit these areas for relaxation and 
exploration. Yet, the lifesaving and life-changing hospital care residents and 
visitors alike count on is at risk of being lost.   
  
California’s smallest rural hospitals — the 37 critical access hospitals with fewer 
than 25 beds that serve communities at least 35 miles from another medical 
facility — are facing their gravest challenge in decades. They are losing money 
every day caring for patients. Nearly two-thirds of these hospitals are operating 
at a severe loss — with their operating margins dropping a frightening 8 
percentage points from 2019 to 2023.  
  
Senate Bill (SB) 1423 (Dahle, R-Bieber), which will be considered on April 24 by 
the Senate Health Committee, would help stabilize these vital, at-risk hospitals 
by creating a new financial model designed to cover the cost of providing 
services to Medi-Cal patients. SB 1423 would help ensure all Californians have 
access to the care they need and deserve.  
  
“Health care that keeps families whole and healthy should be accessible to all 
— not just those living in urban or suburban areas with access to multiple 
providers,” said Carmela Coyle, President & CEO of the California Hospital 
Association. “Rural and critical access hospitals are not only the backbone of 
care in isolated, underserved areas throughout the state, they are also essential 
partners in the state’s broader health care delivery system. Without these 
hospitals, providers in more populated areas would struggle to meet all the 
health care needs of patients from more remote communities.”  
  
The challenges facing rural and critical access hospitals are a national problem. 
Between January 2013 and February 2020, more than 100 rural hospitals 
across the country closed — including Corcoran District Hospital and Madera 
Community Hospital, both in California’s Central Valley. When a rural hospital 
closes, those in poor health, seniors, and people experiencing poverty suffer the 

33

mailto:jemerson-shea@calhospital.org


most (nationally, 13% of people living in an area affected by a closure are below 
the poverty line, compared to 9% overall). For Medicare beneficiaries, a closure 
means the travel distance to access inpatient services increases by 20 miles; 
for specialized services, like treatment for substance use disorders, it increases 
by almost 40 miles.  
  
In those rural communities where hospitals currently remain open, health care 
services are dwindling. Since 2011, one-fifth of California’s rural hospitals have 
had to close or reduce maternity care, and 40% have stopped providing cancer 
services so they can continue providing 24/7 emergency care for all.  
  
“Even in this difficult budget year, California lawmakers have a responsibility to 
ensure that our state’s most remote communities continue to have access to 
vital health care services,” Coyle said. “SB 1423 is urgently needed to protect 
California’s most vulnerable residents.”  

 
 

34



Nurse Executive Consultant Report 

April 2024 

Nursing 

• Business Continuity Planning for disaster preparedness is continuing 
• Quality Director and IP Director start in May 2023. 
• Attended Meditech Expanse Demonstrations. 

 

Regulatory 

• Continuing through the Mock Survey findings, conducting system tracers. 
• Collaborating with the Clinical Informatics to ensure documentation in the computer meets all 

the regulatory requirements.  

Utilization Management 

• Continue work with INNOVA on 3 projects- CDI, charge capture, and Business Continuity 
• Met with Savista leadership to discuss coding processes. 

 

 

 

 

  

35



CNO Dashboard 2024 
Description Target Jan-24 Feb-24 YTD 2024 

ED Visits 2370 2249 2093 4619 

Admission % 10% 6% 6% 6% 

LWBS % < 2.0% 0.04% 0.06% 0.05% 

Door to Provider 10 min 7 min 7 min 7min 

MS admissions 120 107 103 313 

ICU admissions 22 22 28 50 

Deliveries 39 32 28 78 

OR Inpatient 40 24 40 64 

OR Outpatient 12 8 7 22 

ASC 141 104 130 364 

GI 94 69 85 163 
 

 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71


	04.25.24 SBHCD Board Agenda and Closed Session Agenda (final)
	04.25.24 SBHCD Board Meeting AGENDA (FINAL DRAFT)
	IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE
	AGENDA

	Closed Session Agenda 4.25.24 (DRAFT 1)
	SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS  APRIL 25, 2024
	CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
	[X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
	[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS
	[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
	[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
	[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS
	[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED


	Binder3.pdf
	Special Meeting BOD-Minutes 03.21.24 (final)
	Special Meeting BOD-Minutes  03.25.24 (final)
	12057 - Universal Bilirubin Screening for Newborns at 35 Weeks or More of Gestation
	10344 - Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and Domestic Violence
	12078 - Blanket-Solution Warmer
	March 2024 Board report (ABL edits)
	April 2024 - SNF Board Report - LLG
	Board Report_April 2024
	Facilities Comm Min_4.18.24
	04.2024 Foundation Board Report
	PMO Project Summary Report 4.18.24
	CEO Board Report 4.2024
	Turnover- March & Q124
	CHA Press Release_Legislators to Consider Bill to Preserve Rural Health Care Services_4.18.24
	Legislators to Consider Bill to Preserve Rural Health Care Services  

	Nurse Executive Consultant Report April 2024
	FC packet (entire)




